

## Section I

### Notice of Development of Proposed Rules and Negotiated Rulemaking

#### DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

##### Division of Agricultural Environmental Services

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

5E-2.0312 Additional Registration Requirements for Registrants of Structural Fumigants Labeled for Application to Residential Structures

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: This rulemaking implements changes that correspond to the new sulfuryl fluoride (SF) fumigation product label updates.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: This rulemaking is being done to update the additional registration requirements for Registrants of Structural Fumigants to correspond with the new sulfuryl fluoride (SF) products fumigation label.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 487.051, FS

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 487.051, FS

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: January 8, 2026, 8:30 a.m. – 11:30 a.m., or conclusion of the workshop, whichever occurs first.

PLACE: Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. <https://meet.goto.com/217692109> or dial in using your phone: (Toll Free): 1(571)317-3122, Access Code: 217-692-109.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Gerald Everton; (850)617-7997; [Gerald.Everton@fdacs.gov](mailto:Gerald.Everton@fdacs.gov); 3125 Conner Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399-1650.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

#### DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

##### Division of Agricultural Environmental Services

RULE NOS.: RULE TITLES:

5E-14.102 Definitions

5E-14.1025 Inspections and Investigations

5E-14.108 Fumigation Requirements - General Fumigation

5E-14.110 Fumigation Requirements - Notices

5E-14.111 Fumigation Requirements - Application; Restrictions and Precautions

5E-14.112 Fumigation Requirements - Prefumigation Inspections, Evacuation, Warning Notices

(Signs), Special Safety Precautions and Responsibilities

5E-14.113 Fumigation Requirements - Final Post-fumigation Clearance Inspection

5E-14.142 Responsibilities and Duties - Records, Reports, Advertising, Applications

5E-14.1421 Identification Card - Training Verification

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: This rulemaking implements changes that correspond to new fumigation requirements with sulfuryl fluoride fumigation label updates, with new or revised definitions, updated forms, and clarified rule text. Forms no longer in use are being removed for efficiency.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Requirements and regulations related to pest control.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 482.051, 482.091, 482.151, 570.07(22), (23) FS

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 112.011(1), 482.021, (7), (21), (25), 482.032, 482.051, (1), (4), (5), 482.061, 482.071, 482.091, 482.111(5), (9), 482.151, (6), 482.152, 482.161(1)(g), (h), 482.163, 482.226(1), (6), 482.2265, 482.241, 570.07(22) FS

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: January 8, 2026, 8:30 a.m. – 11:30 a.m., or conclusion of the workshop, whichever occurs first.

PLACE: Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. <https://meet.goto.com/217692109> or dial in using your phone: (Toll Free): 1(571)317-3122, Access Code: 217-692-109.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Gerald Everton; (850)617-7997; [Gerald.Everton@fdacs.gov](mailto:Gerald.Everton@fdacs.gov); 3125 Conner Blvd., Tallahassee, FL 32399-1650.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

#### DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

##### Division of Marketing and Development

RULE NOS.: RULE TITLES:

5H-17.002 Definitions

5H-17.004 Use of the Identifiers; Deposit of Funds

5H-17.005 Participant Registration; Application Forms; Types of Membership; Renewal

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rulemaking is to include department-modified versions of the “Fresh From Florida” logo in the definition of “Identifiers” under 5H-17.002; forbid Identifier use by illegal or unregulated products; require Identifiers be prominently displayed and approved by the department before use on packaging; and allow “Fresh From Florida” Logo Incentive Program applications to be submitted via email.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The Florida Agricultural Promotional Campaign (FAPC) creates provisions for the agriculture industry to use “Fresh From Florida” Identifiers on packaging and advertising to promote Florida-grown commodities. This rulemaking allows the department to develop measures which strengthen and protect the “Fresh From Florida” brand integrity.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 570.07(23), 571.24, 571.25(2) F.S.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 571.23, 571.24(1), 571.25 F.S.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Eric Sespico, Assistant Director, Division of Marketing and Development, 407 S. Calhoun Street, Tallahassee, FL, 32399, phone (850)617-7310.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE.

## DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

### Public Employees Relations Commission

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

60CC-1.001 Showing of Interest

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The Commission proposes to amend Rule 60CC-1.001 related to showing of interest statements to provide more uniformity and efficiency in processing representation petitions filed by unions.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Certification of unions and showing of interest statements

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 447.207(1), F.S.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 447.307(2), F.S.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Leon Melnicoff, Rules Attorney, 4708 Capital Circle NW, Suite 300, Tallahassee, FL 32303-7256, (850)488-8641 or by electronic mail – PercRulesClerk@perc.fl.gov

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT: <https://perc.myflorida.com/vnotices.aspx>

## DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

### Family Safety and Preservation Program

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

65C-22.008 School Age Child Care

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Amendments update the licensing standards and adds requirements for safe school officers in the School Age Child Care Facility Handbook.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: School Age Child Care Standards

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 402.305 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 402.305 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Elizabeth Floyd. Elizabeth can be reached at [Elizabeth.Floyd@myflfamilies.com](mailto:Elizabeth.Floyd@myflfamilies.com).

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

## Section II Proposed Rules

## DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

### State Board of Education

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

6A-6.0252 Use of Prescribed Pancreatic Enzyme Supplements

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: This amendment will update the language to more closely align with current State Board of Education rules. The rule will align with Rule 6A-6.0251, F.A.C., Use of Epinephrine Auto-injectors and Anaphylaxis Policy and Rule 6A-6.0253, F.A.C., Diabetes Management.

SUMMARY: The self-administration of pancreatic enzymes medication by students diagnosed with pancreatic insufficiency of cystic fibrosis.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is

required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: Based upon the nature of the changes, this proposed rule is not expected to have any adverse impact on economic growth, business competitiveness or any other factors listed in s. 120.541(2)(a), F.S., and will not require legislative ratification. No increase in regulatory costs are anticipated as a result of the rule changes.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 1002.20(3)(k), F.S.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 1002.20(3)(k), 1006.062(4), F.S.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: January 21, 2026, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Tallahassee State College, Student Union Ballroom, 444 Appleyard Drive, Tallahassee, Florida, 32304.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Andrew Weatherill, Bureau of Exceptional Education and Student Services, studentsupportservices1@fldoe.org, (850)245-7851.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

#### **6A-6.0252 Use of Prescribed Pancreatic Enzyme Supplements.**

(1) Definitions.

(a) Emergency ~~Action Care Plan (EACP)~~ (EAP). An EAP ~~EACP~~ is a child-specific action plan, distributed to appropriate personnel, to facilitate quick and appropriate responses for an individual emergency in the school setting. The EAP ~~EACP~~ may be a component of the Individualized Healthcare Plan (IHP) that is developed consistent with Sections 1002.20(3)(k) and 1006.062(4), F.S. The EAP ~~EACP~~ shall specify when the emergency number (911) will be called and describe a plan of action when the student is unable to self-administer medication or self-manage treatment as prescribed.

(b) Individualized Health Care Plan (IHP). An IHP is a written plan of care developed at the local level to outline the provision of student healthcare services intended to achieve specific student outcomes. ~~The IHP is part of the nursing process that is detailed in the National Association of School Nurses Position Statement: Use of Individualized Healthcare Plans to Support School Health Services (2020) as incorporated by reference in Rule 6A-6.0253, F.A.C., Diabetes Management.~~ The IHP is developed by a registered nurse (RN) in collaboration with the family, student, student's health care providers, and school personnel for the management of pancreatic insufficiency or cystic fibrosis while in school, participating in school-sponsored activities, and in transit to or

from school or school-sponsored activities. The IHP is child-specific and includes a written format for nursing assessment (health status, risks, concerns, and strengths), nursing diagnoses, interventions, delegation, training, expected outcomes, and goals to meet the health care needs of a student with pancreatic insufficiency or cystic fibrosis and to protect the safety of all students from the misuse or abuse of medication.

(c) through (d) No change.

(2) No change.

*Rulemaking Authority 1002.20(3)(k) FS. Law Implemented 1002.20(3)(k), 1006.062(4) FS. History—New 5-5-13, Amended 7-22-14.*

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:

Paul Burns

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Anastasios Kamoutsas

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: December 11, 2025

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: October 31, 2025

#### **DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION**

##### **Division of Early Learning**

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

6M-4.610 Statewide Provider Contract for the School Readiness Program

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed revisions update the rule and incorporated forms.

SUMMARY: The rule and incorporated forms outline school readiness provider eligibility requirements to deliver the School Readiness Program.

##### **SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:**

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: The division's economic analysis of the adverse impact or potential regulatory costs of the proposed rule does not exceed any of the criteria established in s. 120.541(2)(a), F.S., and will not require legislative ratification.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal

for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 1001.02(1), (2)(n), 1002.82(2)(m), F.S.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 1002.82(2)(m), (8), 1002.84(9), (11), (16), (18), 1002.85(2)(g), 1002.87(2), 1002.88, 1002.91, 1002.97(3), F.S.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

DATE AND TIME: January 21, 2026, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Tallahassee State College, 444 Appleyard Drive, Student Union Ballroom, Tallahassee, FL 32304.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Stephanie Savestanan, Manager of Programs and Policy, Division of Early Learning, (850)717-8635, Stephanie.Savestanan@del.fldoe.org.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

**6M-4.610 Statewide Provider Contract for the School Readiness Program.**

(1) General Provisions.

(a) Forms.

1. The State of Florida Statewide School Readiness (SR) Provider Contract, Form DEL-SR 20 with exhibits 1 through 7 (July ~~2023~~ ~~2022~~), is hereby adopted and incorporated by reference. Form DEL-SR 20L entitled “State of Florida Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract Licensed Provider Responsibilities” (July ~~2023~~ ~~2022~~), Form DEL-SR 20LE entitled “State of Florida Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract License Exempt Provider Responsibilities” (July ~~2023~~ ~~2022~~), Form DEL-SR 20FFN entitled “State of Florida Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract Informal Provider Responsibilities” (July ~~2023~~ ~~2022~~), and Form DEL-SR 20A entitled “State of Florida Amendment to the Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract” (July ~~2023~~ ~~2022~~), are hereby adopted and incorporated by reference. A copy of Forms DEL-SR 20 including exhibits 1 through 7, DEL-SR 20A, DEL-SR 20FFN, DEL-SR 20LE, and DEL-SR 20L may be obtained at <https://www.fldoe.org/schools/early-learning/providers/adopted-forms> ~~<https://www.floridaeearlylearning.com/providers/forms-for-providers>~~ or from the Division of Early Learning, ~~325 West Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399~~. The incorporated forms are also available at: <http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-15178> ~~14067~~.

2. The State of Florida Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract, Form DEL-SR 20 with exhibits 1 through 7 (July ~~2026~~ ~~2023~~), is hereby adopted and incorporated by reference. Form DEL-SR 20L entitled “State of Florida

Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract Licensed Provider Responsibilities” (July ~~2026~~ ~~2023~~), Form DEL-SR 20LE entitled “State of Florida Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract License Exempt Provider Responsibilities” (July ~~2026~~ ~~2023~~), Form DEL-SR 20FFN entitled “State of Florida Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract Informal Provider Responsibilities” (July ~~2026~~ ~~2023~~), and Form DEL-SR 20A entitled “State of Florida Amendment to the Statewide School Readiness Provider Contract” (July ~~2026~~ ~~2023~~) are hereby adopted and incorporated by reference. A copy of Forms DEL-SR 20 including exhibits 1 through 7, DEL-SR 20A, DEL-SR 20FFN, DEL-SR 20LE, and DEL-SR 20L may be obtained at <https://www.fldoe.org/schools/early-learning/providers/adopted-forms> ~~<https://www.floridaeearlylearning.com/providers/forms-for-providers>~~ or from the Division of Early Learning, ~~325 West Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399~~. The incorporated forms are also available at: <https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-19027> ~~15178~~.

(b) No change.

(c) All forms referenced in subparagraph (1)(a)1. in this rule, must be used by the early learning coalitions to enter into provider contracts with an end effective date of June 30, ~~2026~~ ~~2022~~. All forms referenced in subparagraph (1)(a)2. in this rule, must be used by the early learning coalitions to enter into provider contracts with a beginning effective date of July 1, ~~2026~~ ~~2023~~ and all dates thereafter until a new contract form is subsequently adopted. All SR providers that register to offer the SR Program must execute Form DEL-SR-20 including exhibits, and Form DEL-SR 20FFN, DEL-SR 20LE, or DEL-SR 20L for the appropriate contract year.

(d) through (f) No change.

(2) No change.

(3) School Readiness ~~Provider Program~~ Ineligibility. For the purpose of this subsection, “individual associated with a provider” means an individual or family member of an individual who, regardless of compensation, holds a management position, oversees the operations of a provider, or is an officer, shareholder, beneficial owner, or member of the board of directors of a provider. A provider will not be eligible to contract to offer the SR program if any of the following circumstances apply:

(a) The early learning coalition may refuse to contract with a SR provider or revoke a SR provider’s eligibility to deliver the School Readiness Program if the provider has been cited for a Class I violation by the department or local licensing agency, as applicable, in accordance with Rule 6M-4.620, 65C-22.010, or 65C-20.012, F.A.C. (as applicable to the provider type). Action taken by the coalition to revoke a provider’s eligibility must be consistent with Section 1002.88(2)(a) and (b), F.S., in

that the revocation is for a period of five (5) years. If the coalition chooses to implement this provision the coalition must develop policies and procedures, in accordance with ~~Element V. Monitoring in~~ Form DEL-SR 115, as incorporated by reference in Rule 6M-9.115, F.A.C., to ensure the standard is applied consistently to all potential and current SR program providers. Each coalition must:

1. through 3. No change.

(b) through (g) No change.

(4) Transfer of Ownership. In the event of a change of ownership, sale, sale of assets, conveyance of ownership, or other transfer of ownership interest, the SR provider must notify the early learning coalition no later than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the transfer of ownership. The coalition and the new owner must execute a new contract for SR services, provided the new owner meets the eligibility requirements set forth in subsection (2) of this rule, and Section 1002.88, F.S., and is not disqualified from contracting pursuant to subsection (3) of this rule. Upon a request to contract due to a transfer of ownership, the coalition will have up to thirty (30) calendar days to execute or decline the contract. This timeline may be extended if all prerequisite requirements have not been met.

*Rulemaking Authority 1001.02(1)(~~mm~~), (2)(n), 1002.82(2)(m) FS. Law Implemented 1002.82(2)(m), (8), 1002.82, 1002.84(9), (11), (16), (18), 1002.85(2)(~~g~~)(4), 1002.87(2), 1002.88, 1002.91, 1002.97(3) FS. History—New 2-18-15, Amended 12-18-16, 11-29-18, 12-17-19, 4-15-21, 3-20-22, 2-21-23.*

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:  
Cari Miller

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE  
PROPOSED RULE: Anastasios Kamoutsas

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY  
HEAD: December 10, 2025

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT  
PUBLISHED IN FAR: October 28, 2025

### Section III

#### Notice of Changes, Corrections and Withdrawals

NONE

### Section IV

#### Emergency Rules

NOTE: The full text of Emergency Rules that are currently in effect can be viewed by going to <https://flrules.org/Notice/emergencyRules.asp>.

### Section V

#### Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule Variance or Waiver

NONE

### Section VI

#### Notice of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

##### DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Florida Keys National Marine Sanctuary Water Quality Protection Program Steering Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, December 17, 2025, 9:00 a.m. – 10:45 a.m.

PLACE: This meeting will be an online webinar provided via GoToWebinar by the Florida Keys National Marine Sanctuary. Please register in advance at: <https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/8278988757135109983>. The webinar ID is 462-388-459. After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar. You also have the option to join by telephone audio by dialing (631)992-3221 and using access code: 302-261-450. You can find instructions on registering for and joining a Go-To-Webinar here: <https://support.goto.com/webinar/how-to-join-attendees>

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Update the members of the Steering Committee and the general public on the progress of ongoing Water Quality Protection Program Projects in the Florida Keys National Marine Sanctuary and discuss future actions.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: [https://gis.myfwc.com/FKNMS\\_WQPP/WQScommittee.htm](https://gis.myfwc.com/FKNMS_WQPP/WQScommittee.htm).

Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, religion, sex, pregnancy, national origin, age, handicap, or marital status. Persons who require special accommodations under the American with Disabilities Act (ADA) or persons who require translation services (free of charge) are asked to contact DEP's Limited English Proficiency Coordinator at (850)245-2118 or [LEP@FloridaDEP.gov](mailto:LEP@FloridaDEP.gov) at least ten (10) days before the meeting. If you have a hearing or speech impairment, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, (800)955-8771 (TDD) or (800)955-8770 (voice).

For more information, you may contact: Genevieve Schave, (305)289-7085, [Genevieve.Schave@FloridaDEP.gov](mailto:Genevieve.Schave@FloridaDEP.gov) or Karen Bohnsack, (305)304-2196, [Karen.Bohnsack@noaa.gov](mailto:Karen.Bohnsack@noaa.gov).

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection's Office of Resilience and Coastal Protection announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, December 17, 2025, 6:00 p.m.

PLACE: Guana Tolomato Matanzas National Estuarine Research Reserve (GTMNERR), Marineland Field Office, 9741 Ocean Shore Blvd., St. Augustine, Florida, 32080

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Management Advisory Group for GTMNERR will hold a meeting to provide advisory input for the management of GTMNERR.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Lia Sansom by email: [Lia.Sansom@FloridaDEP.gov](mailto:Lia.Sansom@FloridaDEP.gov).

Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, religion, sex, pregnancy, national origin, age, handicap, or marital status. Persons who require special accommodations under the American with Disabilities Act (ADA) or persons who require translation services (free of charge) are asked to contact DEP's Limited English Proficiency Coordinator at (850)245-2118 or [LEP@FloridaDEP.gov](mailto:LEP@FloridaDEP.gov) at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting. If you have a hearing or speech impairment, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, (800)955-8771 (TDD) or (800)955-8770 (voice).

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Optometry

The Florida Board of Optometry announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, January 9, 2026, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Teleconference - <https://meet.goto.com/171106269>

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: General board matters, including discussions and actions related to licensure applications, rules, disciplinary issues, and other related business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: <https://floridasoptometry.gov/meeting-information/>

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: the Board office by phone at (850)245-4355 or via email at [MQA.Optometry@flhealth.gov](mailto:MQA.Optometry@flhealth.gov). If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the

proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: the Board office by phone at (850)245-4355 or via email at [MQA.Optometry@flhealth.gov](mailto:MQA.Optometry@flhealth.gov).

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Pharmacy

The Board of Pharmacy Probable Cause Panel announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 18, 2025, 9:00 a.m., E.T.

PLACE: 1(888)585-9008, Participant Code: 599196982(#)

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The panel will conduct a meeting related to public disciplinary cases with reconsiderations

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: [floridaspharmacy.gov](http://floridaspharmacy.gov)

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: (850)245-4474. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Mental Health Program

The Florida Children and Youth Cabinet announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 18, 2025, 11:00 a.m. – 12:00 noon, EST.

PLACE: The Leon Human Services Center, 1000 W Tharpe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32303

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Cabinet is charged with promoting and implementing collaboration, creativity, increased efficiency, information sharing, and improved service delivery between and within state agencies and organizations. Cabinet members will meet to conduct regular business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Pat Smith, (850)717-4452, [pat.smith@myflfamilies.com](mailto:pat.smith@myflfamilies.com).

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the

agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Pat Smith, Dept. of Children and Families, (850)717-4452, pat.smith@myflfamilies.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

#### DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

##### Refugee Services

The Broward Area Refugee Task Force announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, January 15, 2026; 10:00 a.m. - 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Meeting will take place via the Microsoft Teams platform. Use the below link to connect to the meeting:

[https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting\\_NGfKZTIyN2QtNDYwMC00YTMzLThjYzgtYWZhOTM1MjFjOTcz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22id%22%3a%22f70dba48-b283-4c57-8831-cb411445a94c%22%2c%22oid%22%3a%224c7ac74e-0835-4242-a8cf-f26976fc1c32%22%7d](https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NGfKZTIyN2QtNDYwMC00YTMzLThjYzgtYWZhOTM1MjFjOTcz%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22id%22%3a%22f70dba48-b283-4c57-8831-cb411445a94c%22%2c%22oid%22%3a%224c7ac74e-0835-4242-a8cf-f26976fc1c32%22%7d)

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of the Broward Area Refugee Task Force meeting is to increase awareness of the refugee populations, share best practices, spot trends in refugee populations, build collaborations between agencies, help create good communication among service providers, get informed about upcoming community events, and discuss refugee program service needs and possible solutions to meeting those needs.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Janeth Chorlango Quinga at (561)227-6722 or David Draper at (407)317-7335.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Janeth Chorlango Quinga at (561)227-6722 or David Draper at (407)317-7335. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Janeth Chorlango Quinga at (561)227-6722 or David Draper at (407)317-7335.

#### Central Florida Tourism Oversight District

The Central Florida Tourism Oversight District announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: December 19, 2025, 10:30 a.m.

PLACE: 1900 Hotel Plaza Boulevard, Lake Buena Vista, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: District business

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Alycia M. Mills District Clerk at (407)828-3548

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Alycia M. Mills District Clerk at (407)828-3548. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Alycia M. Mills District Clerk at (407)828-3548

#### HNTB

The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Florida's Turnpike Enterprise (Enterprise), announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Virtual/online and Phone-in: December 15, 2025, 6:00 p.m. (Options 1 and 2); In-Person: December 17, 2025, 4:30 p.m. - 7:30 p.m. (Option 3)

PLACE: Option 1: Virtual/online via a computer, tablet, or smartphone

Option 2: By telephone in listen-only mode. Call 1(415)655-0052 and enter audio access code 855-813-572.

Option 3: In-person at the Tom Fellows Community Center, located at 207 North Boulevard West, Davenport, FL 33837

Visit the project website, [www.CentralPolkParkwayEast.com](http://www.CentralPolkParkwayEast.com), to register for the virtual public meeting. \*\*Please note that registration works best in Google Chrome, Microsoft Edge, or Firefox web browsers.\*\* The same information will be presented at the virtual and in-person public meeting.

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Financial Project Identification Numbers: 451419-2, 451419-3, 455878-1 and 455879-1

Project Description: Central Polk Parkway East from US 27 to US 17/92 in Polk County, FL

The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Florida's Turnpike Enterprise will hold public meetings for the above-referenced project. The proposed improvements include a new tolled, limited-access highway from US 27 to US 17/92.

The comment period is being extended for the above referenced project.

This meeting will give interested persons an opportunity to review the selected corridor, ask questions, and provide comments concerning the potential social, economic, and environmental effects of the proposed improvements.

Visit the project website, [www.CentralPolkParkwayEast.com](http://www.CentralPolkParkwayEast.com) to register to attend the Selected Corridor Public Information Meeting virtually. Please note that registration works best in Google Chrome, Microsoft Edge, Safari, or Firefox web browsers. Once registered, you will receive a confirmation email that includes instructions on how to join the meeting virtually. Registration is not required for in-person attendance. Displays that show the selected corridor will be available along with informational videos. All meeting materials that will be on display at the in-person meeting will be posted to the project website the day of the virtual meeting.

For assistance registering for the Selected Corridor Public Information Meeting, or for additional information, please contact Jazlyn Georges, P.E., Project Manager, at (407)264-3298, or by email at [Jazlyn.Georges@dot.state.fl.us](mailto:Jazlyn.Georges@dot.state.fl.us). Persons wishing to submit questions or comments may do so at the meeting or may contact the Project Manager. While comments and questions will be accepted at any time, we ask that those in connection with these public information meetings are submitted by Friday, January 9, 2026.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Jazlyn Georges, P.E., Project Manager. Public participation is solicited without regard to race, color, national origin, age, sex, religion, disability, or family status.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 7 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Jazlyn Georges, P.E., Project Manager. If any person requires translation services (free of charge), please also advise the Project Manager at least seven (7) days before the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Jazlyn Georges, P.E., Project Manager at (407)264-3298 or by email at [Jazlyn.Georges@dot.state.fl.us](mailto:Jazlyn.Georges@dot.state.fl.us)

## Section VII

### Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Declaratory Statements

#### DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Division of Criminal Justice Information Systems

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Department of Law Enforcement has received the petition for declaratory statement from Florida Action Committee, Inc. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of 943.0435 as it applies to the petitioner.

The petition concerns the interpretation and application of Section 943.0435, Florida Statutes with respect to the reporting of mobile homes and manufactured homes that do not operate on Florida Roadways as a "residence," rather than as a "vehicle owned."

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: FDLE Agency Clerk via email [AgencyClerk@fdle.state.fl.us](mailto:AgencyClerk@fdle.state.fl.us) or via U.S. Mail P.O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302

#### DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

Division of Criminal Justice Information Systems

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Department of Law Enforcement has received the petition for declaratory statement from Florida Action Committee, Inc. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of 943.0435 as it applies to the petitioner.

The Petition concerns the interpretation and application of Section 943.0435, Florida Statutes with respect to the reporting of "Internet Identifiers."

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: FDLE Agency Clerk, via email [AgencyClerk@fdle.state.fl.us](mailto:AgencyClerk@fdle.state.fl.us) or U.S. Mail P.O. Box 1489, Tallahassee, FL 32302

#### DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Clinical Laboratory Personnel

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Clinical Laboratory Personnel has received the petition for declaratory statement from Sajid Qureshi The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of section 120.565, Florida Statutes, section 483.823, Florida Statutes, and Rule 64B3-5.003, F.A.C., as it applies to the petitioner.

Petitioner seeks a determination from the Board regarding the interpretation and application of Florida Statutes and Rules related to licensure as a Clinical Laboratory Technologist (Generalist). The petitioner is seeking verification whether a licensure applicant as a Clinical Laboratory Technologist, in the State of Florida, can substitute alternate documentation for employer experience such as: proof of national certification by AMT; evidence of active licensure in another state (New York); signed affidavit attesting to experience and duties; and a verified educational equivalency evaluation? Except for good cause shown, motions for leave to intervene must be filed within 21 days after publication of this notice.

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Dayle Mooney, Executive Director, Board of Clinical Laboratory Personnel, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin # C-07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258, telephone: (850)488-0595, or email, [Dayle.Mooney@flhealth.gov](mailto:Dayle.Mooney@flhealth.gov).

## DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

## Board of Respiratory Care

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Respiratory Care has received the petition for declaratory statement from Gary DiLorenzo, CRT, on December 11, 2025. The petition seeks the agency's opinion as to the applicability of Chapter 468, F.S. as it applies to the petitioner.

The Petitioner seeks a Declaratory Statement from the Board stating whether Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy (HBOT) is considered a respiratory therapy modality, whether licensed respiratory therapists are the appropriate professionals to operate hyperbaric chambers and administer oxygen-based therapy, and whether private credentials can replace or supersede state licensure. Except for good cause shown, motions for leave to intervene must be filed within 21 days after the publication of this notice.

A copy of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Allen Hall, Executive Director, Board of Respiratory Care, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C05, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253, by email at [Allen.Hall@flhealth.gov](mailto:Allen.Hall@flhealth.gov), or by telephone at (850)245-4373.

## Section VIII

### Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding the Validity of Rules

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

## Section IX

### Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges

NONE

## Section X

### Announcements and Objection Reports of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee

NONE

## Section XI

### Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and Purchasing

## DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

## Division of Recreation and Parks

Invitation to Bid BDC12-25/26 Eden Gardens State Park – Wesley House Roof

NOTICE OF INVITATION TO BID: The Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Bureau of Design and Construction, is soliciting formal, competitive, sealed bids from contractors for bid number BDC12-25/26, Eden Gardens State Park – Wesley House Roof. More info @ <https://vendor.myfloridamarketplace.com/search/bids/detail/14600>

#### FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION PALM BEACH SHOOTING SPORTS COMPLEX WELCOME CENTER & POLE BARN

BID NO: FWC 25/26-60C.

TITLE: Palm Beach Shooting Sports Complex Welcome Center & Pole Barn.

The Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission is seeking competitive pricing for constructing of a Welcome Center and Pole Barn at Palm Beach Shooting Sports Complex, in accordance with the contract documents and Chapter 255 of the Florida Statutes.

To review the bid details:

Visit <https://vendor.myfloridamarketplace.com/>

Select Search Advertisements.

Enter FWC 25/26-60C into the Agency Advertisement Number box.

Click the Search button.

Select the solicitation to view the advertisement details.

Download files made available in the advertisement details page.

NOTE: The MyFloridaMarketPlace Vendor Information Portal (link provided above) is the posting location for all new and changing information regarding this solicitation. Interested bidders should continue to monitor this site for the entirety of the solicitation process.

Direct all questions to the Procurement Manager: Randy Golightly, Florida Fish & Wildlife Conservation Commission, 1875 ORANGE AVENUE EAST, Tallahassee, FL 32311–6160, [Randolph.Golightly@MyFWC.com](mailto:Randolph.Golightly@MyFWC.com), (850)617-9648

## Section XII Miscellaneous

### DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Index of Administrative Rules Filed with the Secretary of State Pursuant to subparagraphs 120.55(1)(b)7. – 8., F.S., the below list of rules were filed in the Office of the Secretary of State between 3:00 p.m., Monday, December 8, 2025, and 3:00 p.m., Friday, December 12, 2025.

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
2ER25-3	12/8/2025	12/8/2025
5B-52.001	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
5B-52.007	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
5B-52.0075	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
5B-52.008	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
5B-52.009	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
5B-52.010	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
5B-52.011	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
5B-52.012	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
5B-62.008	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
5B-62.014	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
12-3.0012	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12-3.0015	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12-3.0017	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12-6.0015	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12-16.003	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12-17.001	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12-18.004	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12-22.005	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12-24.002	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12-24.003	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12-24.011	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12-26.008	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12-28.003	12/9/2025	12/29/2025

12-29.001	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12-29.002	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12-29.003	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12-29.005	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12-29.008	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12A-1.001	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.0015	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12A-1.005	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.008	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.010	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.037	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.0371	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.038	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.039	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.044	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.056	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.060	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.061	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.070	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.072	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.073	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.085	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.091	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.0911	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.097	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.097	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12A-1.109	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-1.117	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-13.002	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-15.003	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-15.004	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-15.005	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-15.007	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-15.014	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12A-16.008	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12B-6.001	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12B-6.005	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12B-6.0051	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12B-7.005	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12B-7.008	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12B-7.026	12/9/2025	12/29/2025

12B-7.030	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12B-7.031	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12B-8.0012	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12B-8.0016	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12B-8.003	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12B-8.006	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12B-12.005	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12C-1.022	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12C-1.051	12/9/2025	1/1/2026
12C-2.011	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
12C-2.0115	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
33-602.112	12/10/2025	12/30/2025
40D-2.321	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
40D-2.331	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
60S-7.0041	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
60S-7.010	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
60S-7.050	12/8/2025	12/28/2025
61H1-20.0093	12/9/2025	12/29/2025
64B4-5.001	12/10/2025	1/1/2026
64B9-8.003	12/10/2025	1/1/2026
64B9-8.006	12/10/2025	1/1/2026
64B9-15.009	12/10/2025	1/1/2026
64B9-15.0095	12/10/2025	1/1/2026
<b>LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE APPROVAL SECTIONS 120.541(3), 373.139(7) AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES</b>		
<b>Rule No.</b>	<b>File Date</b>	<b>Effective Date</b>
14-10.0043	4/11/2025	**/**/****
60FF1-5.009	7/21/2016	**/**/****
65C-9.004	3/31/2022	**/**/****
69C-2.004	11/5/2025	**/**/****
69C-2.005	11/5/2025	**/**/****
69C-2.016	11/5/2025	**/**/****
69C-2.022	11/5/2025	**/**/****
69C-2.026	11/5/2025	**/**/****
69C-2.034	11/5/2025	**/**/****
69C-2.035	11/5/2025	**/**/****

## DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Office of the Secretary

Florida State Clearinghouse

The state is coordinating reviews of federal activities and federally funded projects as required by Section 403.061(43), F.S. This includes Outer Continental Shelf activities and other actions subject to federal consistency review under the Florida Coastal Management Program. A list of projects, comments and deadlines, and the address for providing comments, are available at: <https://prodapps.dep.state.fl.us/clearinghouse/>. For information, call (850)717-9037. This public notice fulfills the requirements of 15 CFR 930.

### Section XIII

#### Index to Rules Filed During Preceding Week

NOTE: The above section will be published on Tuesday beginning October 2, 2012, unless Monday is a holiday, then it will be published on Wednesday of that week.